CITY OF LONG BEACH  G-31

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

333 West Ocean Boulevard e Long Beach, CA 90802 e (562) 570-6383 e FAX (562) 570-6012

April 3, 2007

HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
City of Long Beach
California

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the City Manager to approve an agreement for maintenance of the
landscape area within the State Highway Right-of-Way and execute a
maintenance agreement with the State of California for proposed landscaping
along State Highway Route 1 (Pacific Coast Highway) and Loynes Drive,
adjacent to Jack Nichol Park in the City of Long Beach. (District 3)

DISCUSSION

In July 2003, the Development of Basin 8 Marina was completed. The Basin 8 Marina
project included a park access road, parking lot, boat owner’s restroom, and boat docks.
The second phase of the project is the construction of Costa del Sol Park, which has
since been renamed as Jack Nichol Park. Construction of Jack Nichol Park on vacant
City property, located at 6262 Pacific Coast Highway, is now in progress. Contract
scope of work includes grading, export and disposal of existing dredge fill material, soil
treatment, import of new topsoil, and construction of a storm drain system. The park is
designed for passive use with hardscaping, landscaping and irrigation.

Site plan review and local coastal development permit conditions of approval of the
project include requirements to improve an adjacent area between Costa del Sol Drive
and Pacific Coast Highway, which is located within the State Highway Right-of-Way.
Improvements of the small area include landscape planting with lawn/ground covers
and street trees, and installation of an irrigation system.

The City of Long Beach completed plans for landscape improvements and has
submitted construction and encroachment permit applications to the State. In order for
the City to begin landscape improvements and prior to issuance of permits from the
State, it is necessary for the City of Long Beach to enter into a maintenance agreement
with the State of California. The maintenance agreement will require the City of Long
Beach to maintain the landscaped area in perpetuity.

This matter was reviewed by Deputy City Attorney Lori A. Conway on March 22, 2007
and Budget and Performance Management Bureau Manager David Wodynski on March

23, 2007.
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TIMING CONSIDERATIONS

City Council approval is requested on April 3, 2007, to execute the maintenance
agreement with the State of California. Completion of construction is anticipated by July
2007 and landscape maintenance will occur following completion and acceptance of
planting and irrigation.

FISCAL IMPACT

Annual maintenance expense is estimated at $4,800. Sufficient funds to support this
activity is budgeted in the Tidelands Fund (TF) in the Department of Parks, Recreation
and Marine (PR).

SUGGESTED ACTION:

Approve recommendation.

Respectfully submitted,
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CHRISTINE F. ANDERSEN PHIL HESTER
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR OF PARKS, RECREATION
‘ AND MARINE
APPROVED

GERALD R. MILLER
CITY MANAGER
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